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Foreword by the Chief Executive of Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Welcome to our annual trustees' report for 2017. Our charity works for the benefit of lung cancer patients, 
their families, friends and carers, and all who are affected by this disease. Ours is the only UK charity 
wholly dedicated to defeating lung cancer; we take this responsibility very seriously. 

Lung cancer is the UK's biggest cancer killer in both men and women. Each year it kills 36,000 people!", 
more than the number killed by breast, prostate and pancreatic cancers combined. 

To address this our charity has a dual function: saving lives and supporting people living with lung cancer. 
This is why we focus on certain key areas of activity: 

Saving /ives by means of 

• Research 

• Prevention and Information 

Supporting people living with lung cancer by means of 

• Information and Support Services 

These activities are not discrete and unrelated. 

• Our research activities add to the store of information helping patients and their families to better 
understand the disease and its implications for their lives 

• Our prevention arm, the Cut Films competition, gives young people skills and understanding to make 
better-informed choices, using data drawn from research and information services 

• Our information staff create and update high-quality data-led and patient-reviewed collateral such as 
leaflets and online content, aided by input from research and prevention projects 

• Our support services include a nurse-led helpline and online forum, as well as patient grants; feedback 
from these informs and refreshes our information collateral 

While 2017 was challenging for the charity, we still delivered a successful year during which we raised 
£4,505,127 and spent £5,204,254 to support these activities. This report reveals in more granular detail 
how and why we allocate funding. I urge you to read it thoroughly to see how we have sought to meet our 
core objectives. 

Highlights of our year include: 

• Spending over £1,400,000 supporting high-quality research projects which give researchers the 
opportunity to test a hypothesis and provide results to establish promising lines of enquiry. We have seen 
exciting results regarding early detection, including the development of biomarkers in blood and sputum. 

• Funding our early detection 'Lung Health MoT' project in Nottingham. Several patients were offered CT 
scans which identified cases of lung cancer and other serious diseases. Five patients were identified as 
having lung cancer. Three of these were diagnosed at Stage 4 and are now receiving palliative care; two 
were diagnosed at Stage 1 and have had curative treatment. 129 people received CT scans and ten of 
these had small nodules on their lungs; they will now undergo interval scanning to monitor any growth or 
change. They subsequently received curative surgery or are being closely monitored to ensure their future 
wellbeing. 
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• Devoting over £900,000 to providing support to lung cancer patients and their families. We do this in 
several ways, from providing top-quality information about lung cancer such as how to manage symptoms 
or details of treatments to offering financial support through patient relief grants. 

• Publishing our key report, 'New issues and age-old challenges: a review of young people's relationship 
with tobacco'. As smoking contributes to 85% of all cases of lung cancer!", prevention is a vital part of 
what we do. 

• Launching our #HeadHigh campaign to tackle the stigma and prejudice too frequently associated with 
lung cancer. We offer patients and supporters the opportunity to speak out and challenge this stigma, this 
prejudice. 

Your donations are the key to our continued success. By investing in our work you help people whose 
needs have too often been overlooked. By supporting those living with lung cancer and helping our young 
people in their efforts to avoid smoking, you are improving the nation's health, both now and for years to 
come. 

We would like to thank the volunteers who raise funds for us, those who help at our various events and 
activities throughout the year, and also those who offer their services to work alongside our professional 
staff in our retail shops; without their efforts, we could not deliver our objectives. 

We hope that you will be inspired by our plans to help people affected by lung cancer to lead longer, better 
and happier lives. 

These are exciting times. We have plans for further projects to help detect lung cancer earlier. We are 
seeing the emergence of new therapies to treat more patients. Above all, we are seeing lung cancer and 
lung cancer patients achieving a much higher public profile. The mainstream UK media are taking notice 
of the disease in a positive and measured way. This is helping us tackle the stigma that clings to lung 
cancer and so often adds to the burden for patients and their loved ones. 

As their advocates, their voice, we are passionate in our efforts to overcome this stigma, and so our 2017 
'#HeadHigh' campaign focused squarely on this issue. We are particularly grateful to the patients and 
their families who gave so freely of themselves to make this campaign such a success. Already, its impact 
has been tangible - lung cancer is now very much on the national agenda. 

Clearly, the overall picture for lung cancer is improving and we thank each and every one of you for helping 
to make that happen. 

We cannot and will not pause in our 
commitment to furthering those 
improvements because we firmly believe 
that everyone affected by lung cancer 
should be able to Expect Better 
Paula Chadwick May 2018 

5 



Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 
Trustees' Consolidated Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2017 

Who WeAre 

The Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation Company Number 03059425 (the Foundation) is a company 
limited by guarantee governed by its Memorandum and Articles of Association last amended 31st January 
2011. The company is registered as a charity with both the Charity Commission in England and Wales 
(1046854) and the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator (SC037596). 

We exist to raise funds and receive donations for the benefit of lung cancer patients and all affected by 
the disease. By securing donations, legacies and sponsorship, the charity can make a real difference for 
patients, their families and those who look after them. 

By engaging with thousands of people each year, we have established the charity as the first-call 
information and support resource for those diagnosed with lung cancer, their families and carers. Our aim 
is to be the properly representative 'voice' of lung cancer patients in dealing with all areas of health care 
policy and provision, as well as providing reliable, first-class information and support services. 

We would like you to support us in our crucial work so please read on and let us tell you more about 
ourselves, what we do, what we have achieved and how we go about spending the money so kindly given 
to us. 

Our mission 

As mentioned by our chief executive in her introduction, the charity has a dual focus: saving lives and 
supporting people living with lung cancer. 

To do this, we promote and fund research into the causes, prevention and treatment of lung cancer, we 
develop, and support health promotion programmes designed to prevent the onset of lung cancer, and we 
provide amenities to improve the quality of life of patients and their relatives. 

In raising new money and by careful management of our existing funds, the charity provides a public 
benefit by addressing unmet needs. We do this by making grants to serve lung cancer patients and their 
families receiving services, by funding research, and by our associated information, support and 
prevention services. 

The trustees confirm that they have paid due regard to the public benefit guidance published by the Charity 
Commission and Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator. The Foundation refers to the public benefit 
guidance when reviewing and setting its aims and objectives and in future planning. 

Patient grants are made in accordance with charity law, our constitution and the wishes and directions of 
donors. In making these grants, we seek to reflect the wishes of patients and their families by directing 
funds towards the areas they tell us are most needed. 

During the year 2017, we made grants totalling £396,372. When considering where to focus our attention, 
our corporate trustees' board and particularly the members of the charity's research funding committee 
have regard to the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and what this means for our charity. 
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What we achieved in 2017 

Saving lives 

Lung cancer is difficult to identify, to treat and to cure. This is our main challenge. 

In the UK, current survival rates are: 

31% for one year [I] 

10% for five years [2] 

5% ~Ol' ten years (1.] 

Sources - [/1 National Callcer Audit 20/ 7; [l] CRUK 2014- 

Although lung cancer kills almost 36,000 people in the UK each year!", it attracts far less spend-per-death 
on research than other major site-specific cancers such as breast, cervical, testicular or leukaemia. 
Whereas for each person who dies of testicular cancer, £10,116 is spent on research into the disease, 
lung cancer research receives just £700. 

Our Medical Director, Dr Jesme Fox, identifies several factors which changed the landscape for lung 
cancer during 2017. 

The general picture 

• The latest thoracic surgical figures, from the National Lung Cancer Audit 2017, as compiled by the Royal 
College of Physicians, based on 2015 data, show that the number of lung cancer operations increased 
by 4.9%[4]on the 2014 figures to 5,936 resections. Just under half were performed using less invasive 
techniques, mainly Video Assisted Thoracic Surgery, and also some Robot Assisted Thoracic Surgery. 

• The National Lung Cancer Audit (NLCA) also shows an improvement in the one-year survival in this audit 
cohort: 38%, compared with 31 % for the 2017 audit. Pathological confirmation rates have risen to 72%. 
Overall, anti-cancer treatments were given to 60% of lung cancer patients. 

The proportion of non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC) patients undergoing surgery has increased to 
16.8%. The proportion of NSCLC patients (PSO toi) receiving chemotherapy has risen to 64%. However, 
the audit report still shows unacceptable variation in standards of care between Trusts. 

• Figures from the National Cancer Research Institute (NCR I) show that the site-specific cancer research 
spend by charities and government on lung cancer has increased to 10%, up from 6% five years ago. [5] 

• The announcement by the chief executive of NHS England, Simon Stevens, that there will be a roll out of 
'Lung Health Checks' with £4.2m attached. [6] 

• Adult smoking rates continue to fall (Office of National Statistics Report, published June 2017). In 2016, 
15.8% of adults smoked in the UK, compared with 17.2% in 2015. UK break down: England - 15.5%; 
Ireland -18.1%; Scotland -17.7%; Wales -16.9%.[7] 

• Smoking rates among young people are now at a record low, with just 7% of 15-year aids in England 
identified as regular smokers. [7] 
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• July 2017 marked ten years since the ban on smoking in public places in England took effect. Our charity 
campaigned vigorously to support the introduction of this legislation. 

• New therapies for lung cancer made available on NHS in England included pembrolizumab (as a first line 
therapy for lung cancers with PDl1 >50%, available via the Cancer Drugs Fund); ceratinib (first line for 
ALK positive), and nivolumab (as a second line, via the CDF. 

Roy Castle lung Cancer Foundation provided evidence on the impact of several such therapies to both 
NICE and the approval body for Scotland, the Scottish Medicines Consortium (SMC). These two regulatory 
bodies are responsible for determining which new treatments are made available on the NHS in England, 
Wales and Scotland. 

As the only UK lung cancer charity, we are the patient representative for both NICE and the SMC. We 
consider how any new drug could impact on a patient's quality of life while remaining pragmatic by 
considering such factors as: 

• Is it better than current treatment? 

• Would it help more people? 

• Does it provide a better quality of life? 

We fully appreciate the sensitivity surrounding accessibility of treatments. We stand shoulder to shoulder 
with patients and are committed to securing genuine treatment advances. 

Without us, that patient voice is not directly represented. There has been significant advancement in the 
availability of treatments for lung cancer, including many new treatments such as targeted therapies and 
immunotherapies. 

In 2017, we saw the first immunotherapy, pembrolizumab, approved as a first line treatment via the Cancer 
Drug Funds (CD F). 

During 2016-2017, we provided evidence on the impact of several new medicines to NICE and SMC. 

The following are now available for patients in England, Wales and/or Scotland: 

NIVOLUMAB 
PEMBROLIZIUMAB 

CRIZOTINIB 
CERTINIB 

OSIMERTINIB 

Many people currently undergoing treatment live with the knowledge that, when the current treatment runs 
out or stops working, their only remaining option is palliative care. 

The advancement and increased availability of new treatments provides hope to people with lung cancer; 
they know that there are new ways to keep them alive and give them more time with their families. 

So what are we doing to help? 

Research 

We have seen that lung cancer receives significantly less funding than other cancers, so our research 
grants are essential if we are to expect better survival rates. We fund research projects which give 
researchers the opportunity to test a hypothesis. This then gives them the necessary results needed to 
secure further funding. Without our grants, they may not be able to pursue their research. 
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Early detection 

As our Chief Executive mentioned in her introduction, early detection is key to improving lung cancer 
survival rates. It's working for breast and cervical cancer; over 5,000[8] lives have been saved each year 
after screening became available on the NHS. 

We believe this can be emulated for lung cancer. So, in January 2017, we awarded an initial grant of 
£80,000 to launch our Lung Health MoT Check project in Bulwell, Nottingham. Patients in five practices 
aged between 60 and 75[9]with a history of smoking were invited to attend a lung health check appointment 
by their GP. 

In total, the project identified five cases of lung cancer - two at an early stage, three late stage - and, in 
almost 5% of patients, the CT scan revealed small nodules on their lungs. These are not currently 
malignant. . 

However, these patients will now undergo interval CT scanning to monitor any growth or changes. 

Without our health check, it is highly likely these patients would have stayed 'under the radar' and remained 
undiagnosed even if the nodule grew. Now, any changes would mean they should be diagnosed at an 
earlier sta e and be offered otentiall curative, and far less radical, treatment. 

The health check also found other respiratory conditions. Nearly two thirds (62%) of people who attended 
a CT scan were referred for further care. This was for a number of reasons, including COPO, high blood 
pressure and asthma. Patients were also given smoking cessation advice. 

Attendance levels at our check were impressive: 96% of people invited came for their scan, a figure that 
surpasses similar projects where patients had to visit hospital. This suggests that location plays a 
significant role. By placing a CT scanner in the heart of the community, more people attend. 
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Other RCLCF research projects: 

• We undertook an external five-year review of our open research grants process and work (summaries of 
individual research projects are available on our website). Over the five years assessed (to end of May 
2017),19 of the 30 research projects funded were completed. 

• For these, 26 papers were published; 26 posters shown at key professional meetings; there were 24 oral 
presentations; 11 researchers said that RCLCF funded work (or parts of it) has continued with new funding; 
16 researchers said important collaborations have resulted from the RCLCF funded grant. The external 
five-year report was very positive. 

• We have part-funded Dr Gavin Jones as Clinical Research Fellow at the University of Nottingham. Dr 
Jones' current progress with his research includes: 

Completing data analysis for his study, 'Factors that determine administration of and early death 
following chemotherapy for small cell lung cancer: An analysis of National data'. He has now written 
two drafts of the manuscript and plans to submit this to the Journal of Clinical Oncology for consideration 
of publication. 

Submitting two award-winning abstracts from this work to the British Thoracic Oncology Group (BTOG) 
meeting in January 2018. One abstract has been selected as an oral presentation, "What factors are 
associated with early mortality following the first dose of chemotherapy in small cell lung cancer?" 

Another abstract, "Chemotherapy prescriptions for small cell lung cancer in England; An analysis of the 
National Lung Cancer Audit, Systemic Anti-Cancer Therapies and Hospital Episode Statistics 
databases," has also been accepted as a poster presentation. 

"Early mortality and survival following platinum-based combination chemotherapy for small cell lung 
cancer; a systematic review and meta-analysis of clinical trial data" - Dr Jones and his team have 
completed an extensive literature search of clinical trials to try to quantify short and long term survival 
following combination platinum chemotherapy in SCLC. Dr Jones aims to submit this for publication in 
a journal in 2018. 

"Factors that determine receipt of and early death following systemic anticancer therapy in NSCLC" - 
Dr Jones has compiled a dataset composed of two years of national data (2015-2016). His team has 
started cleaning these data in statistical software (Stata), preparing them for analysis. 

Besides his Ph~, Dr Jones has undertaken other work related to lung cancer. He currently has a 
literature review titled "Recent advances in the management of lung cancer" submitted to the journal 
Clinical Medicine. 

He has also completed research within the respiratory department at Nottingham University Hospitals, 
investigating whether thrombocytosis at presentation to the lung cancer clinic is associated with a 
diagnosis of lung cancer by examining patient records. The results from this work were accepted as 
poster presentations at two meetings and he plans to write this into a complete manuscript. 

• Elsewhere, we continued to fund the Liverpool Lung Project Biobank. The charity has funded this project 
- a risk model - at the University of Liverpool for several years. Led by Professor John Field, this project 
provides resources vital to the wider roll-out of lung health checks to those at a higher risk of lung cancer. 

• Dr Lakis Liloglou and his colleagues at the University of Liverpool have made a significant advance in the 
search for a robust and accurate blood bio-marker for lung cancer. 
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Early results are encouraging, and Dr Liloglou and the 
team will continue their work, expanding the research 
study, as they pursue the prospect of a relatively non 
invasive way to diagnose lung cancer at an early stage. 

• Dr Jesme Fox co-authored a paper on advocacy 
and health technology assessment, published 2pt 
September: 'Patient Value - Perspectives from the 
advocacy community' 

• Research at the Christie Hospital in Manchester. 
We have agreed to fund an investigation of 
docetaxel use. This will be extremely helpful in future NICE appraisals, as 'real world' data on this drug 
use is not available. The title of the project is 'Outcomes and tolerability of second line docetaxel alone or 
with nintedinib for NSCLC'. The study is ongoing. 

Policy work within the Medical Directorate: 

• The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) has begun updating the 'Lung Cancer 
Diagnosis and Treatment Guideline'. This was last updated in 2011. Dr Fox is on the Updating Committee. 

• In June 2017, in partnership with BTOG, we held our second Lung Cancer Update from the American 
Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO) meeting. The filmed presentations are available via the charity's 
website. 

• The RCLCF 'Living with Lung Cancer Report was completed for publication in 2018. 

• We continue as secretariat for the Lung Cancer Clinical Expert Group, an NHS England multidisciplinary 
group of lung cancer experts. During 2017, the National Optimal Lung Cancer Pathway, developed by the 
CEG, was approved within NHSE processes. Supporting documents are also available on our charity's 
website - 'Specification for commissioning lung cancer services and examples of how to implement the 
Pathway'. There will be a focus in 2018 for Cancer Alliances to implement the Pathway. 

The Global Lung Cancer Coalition (GLCC) - the international 'voice' of lung cancer patients. Established in 
2001, the GLCC comprises 37 non-government patient organisations from 26 countries. Roy Castle Lung 
Cancer Foundation is proud to provide the Secretariat to the GLCC; Dr Fox is its Secretary. During 2017, 
Roy Castle Lung Cancer staff assisted with the following: 

• Undertaking two Populus international consumer 
polls undertaken and published. 

• Producing two new GLCC factsheets: 'Lung Cancer 
Screening', 'Lung Cancer and Stopping Smoking'. 

• Translating the GLCC 'Immunotherapy' factsheet into 
15 languages. 

• The GLCC has established partnerships to maximise 
global understanding of the burden of lung cancer and the 
right of patients to effective early detection, better treatment 
and supportive care. 

• The GLCC has hosted symposia, at the invitation of 
the IASLC, during its World Congresses in Lung Cancer 
in Vienna (2016), Denver (2015), Sydney (2013), 
Amsterdam (2011), San Francisco (2009), Seoul (2007), 

Barcelona (2005) Vancouver (2003), and now at Yokohama, Japan, in October 2017. 
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• Global Journalist Award. In an attempt to engage with journalists and encourage more responsible 
reporting on lung cancer issues, since 2006 the GLCC has developed an annual 'Excellence in Lung 
Cancer Journalism' Award. This continued during 2017. 

Prevention - Cut Films. While early detection and intervention are the most effective ways to treat lung 
cancer, without doubt, the best solution of all is to prevent lung cancer developing. While early detection 
and intervention are the most effective ways to treat lung cancer, without doubt, the best solution of all is 
to prevent lung cancer developing. 

Smoking is the main avoidable risk factor for lung cancer. In an attempt to sever this link, we offer our Cut 
Films competition as a preventive measure. This is an award-winning anti-tobacco project, working with 
young people, schools and youth groups and in partnership with local authorities to persuade young people 
to not smoke. 

Workshops support young people to learn the facts about tobacco and to translate their research into short 
adverts or films which they share with their friends and family as part of a national film competition. Our 
interactive filmmaking workshops are linked to the national curriculum and support young people under 25 
to learn new skills. Our approach is fun, engaging and evidence-led. 

In 2017, Cut Films: 

• Launched its report, "New issues and age-old challenges: a review of young people's relationship with 
tobacco". 

• Welcomed the delayed publication of the new strategy on tobacco control for England in July setting 
ambitious targets to lower levels of smoking in the next generations. 

• Worked in Liverpool, Merseyside, Barnet and Ealing and secured funding to deliver service in Isle of Man, 
Southwark, Berkshire & Buckinghamshire to launch new services. 

• Delivered the 'Look After your Lungs' project across schools in the north west of England. 

• Delivered the 'Shisha Awareness' project across schools and youth clubs in Barnet. 

• Held successful local and national competitions, resulting in 160 films entered for the National Awards and 
attracting significant media coverage around these events. 
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• Ran sessions for more than 6,000 young people, engaging with them and educating them about the impact 
of tobacco. 

• Ran the Quit Support forum, which has 7,820 members sharing experiences and offering peer support. 

Supporting People Living with Lung Cancer 

Information and Support Services 

Information 

It is vitally important for lung cancer patients to have access to 
up-to-date information that is both accurate and easy to follow. 

This can help them take control, clarifying medical jargon to 
provide a better understanding of medical procedures such as 
tests or treatments. Reading about the experiences of others 
who have been through similar situations can also help separate 
fact from fear. 

96% of people 
would reccomend 

our patient 
information 

days 

We provide a wide range of literature. This is readily available on 
our website and distributed directly to patients by lung cancer 
nurse specialists and GPs 

Our Lung Cancer Information Days give patients and their 
families the opportunity to hear from lung cancer professionals 
such as oncologists, thoracic surgeons and lung cancer nurses. 
There is also the chance to ask questions and share experiences 
with other patients and carers. 

"Lung cancer information 
days offer more time for 
people to get much more 
information from not 
just one specialist 
but from several." 

Martin Chamberlain 
Chest Surgeon, Southampton 
and guest speaker at our 
Portsmouth Information Day 
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Face to Face Support 

• 

We have 54 support groups across the UK. We also 
provide facilitator training for an additional 141ung cancer 
nurse specialists. These groups provide support to those 
affected by lung cancer - patients, families and carers - 
from diagnosis, and for those unable to come to a support 
group, we provide emotional support and practical advice 
through our free helpline and online forum . 

Financial Support 

Since 2012 we have offered one-off grants to those with 
lung cancer whose ability to manage day to day costs 
and bills has deteriorated due to their cancer. 
Approximately 300 Specialist Nurses, MacMillan 
Advisors and Palliative Care Specialists were involved in 
supporting patients in receiving this funding. In 2017 we 
provided 481 people with lung cancer access to support 
grants worth £85,375. 

We also provide an inclusive support network which 
allows patients and supporters to share their 
experiences with others in a similar situation. 

Our achievements during 2017 include: 

• Distribution of 12,788 Patient Information packs and 26,027 treatment leaflets, with orders taken from 959 
Health Care Professionals and Information Centres. 

• The introduction of new information products on 'Small Cell Lung Cancer', 'Brain Metastases' and updated 
our 'Living with Surgery' pack and 'Radiotherapy' booklet. 

• We won "Highly Commended" awards from the BMA for our Travelling and Lung Cancer and our Living 
with Lung Cancer booklets. 

• Before, during and after Lung Cancer Awareness Month (LCAM - held in November), we distributed 3,501 
awareness ('Signs & Symptoms') leaflets/fliers. 

• We presented three posters at the National Lung Cancer Forum for Nurses Annual Conference and 
collaborated with the Audit team on a patient version of the report. 

• We collaborated in the production of a patient-level version of the National Lung Cancer Audit report 

Support 

• Provided support to 775 patients/carers via our 'Ask the Nurse' services and had 67 new members each 
month on our online platform. 

• Delivered seven Information Days across the UK, attracting almost 200 participants. 

• We have 52 groups around the country, with more than 40 meeting in an average month. 
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Awareness 

• OIJr active Advocates have been activa in their local communities, 
on NHS Committees and in supporting uur campaiqns such as 
#HeadHigh. 

• Distributed over 290 LCAM packs. 

• Took part In parliamentary events in We:strTlirl:ster, Holyrood and 
Cardill raising the profile of our work and tile importance of early 
detection and research for lung cancer. 

• Took part in seven Advisorv Boards hosted by pharmaceutical 
partners including events involving European and international 
advocacy organisations. 

Fundraisinq. 

Everything we do is as a direct result of your help, your support - 
and your incredible gcrlcru~ily. Thiu allows ut.; lu support our 
researchers, our staff, our volunteers - but above all, patients and 
their loved ones. So raising the funds to do the work we have outlined in this report is absolutely crucial. 
[13J 

This year, our Fundraising department worked incredibly hard - and it achieved the following: 

• Income reached £1,775,398. 

• We had 17% more donors, with 7,833 people donating to the 
charity. 

• Donor retention (those who gave in consecutive years) 
reached a record 41 %, up from 23% in 2015. 

• Our sporting events team raised £485,000, over £100,000 
more than the previous year, including a record year for the 
London Marathon, raising £167,000 from 70 runners. 

• Community Fundraising continued to go from strength to 
strength with a 25% increase on the previous year, raising 
£223,000. This was on the back of successful campaigns including 
Swim the Distance and the Enterprise Challenge. 

• Charitable Trusts donated £128,000, up from £1 01 ,000 the previous year, including substantial repeat gifts 
from The Scholl Foundation and Slater & Gordon Charitable Trust. 

• Corporate income grew with new support from organisations including Next, Leicester City FC and 
continued support from Coca-Cola Enterprises. 

• New online initiatives were launched to aid those people who have lost someone to lung cancer, including 
personalised tribute trees as part of our Celebrata A Life campaign. Our Christmas carnpaiqn increased 
by 22%, raising £27,232 in 2017. 

• Legacies continue to be our largest income stream and work continued to make people aware of the 
importance of managing their estate and future planning. Our free will service and pop-up stands have 
spread this message to interested parties and has been very popular. 
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• We launched a new development board with senior representatives from businesses across the 
Merseyside region. 

Our plan is to continue to increase our level of fundraising to help us transform the prospects for people 
who currently live with lung cancer and those who may develop the disease in the future. 

Retail 

Our shops and online retail offer enjoyed a year of consolidation with a healthy 9% increase in sales; 
yielding a total over £2,100,000 (up from £1,932,000 in 2016). 

We opened a large new store in Warrington in March, and this produced a healthy contribution of £23k towards 
the overall contribution made by Retail to the charity's bottom line of £218,795 (£144,439 in 2016). 

Among other significant events for the department were the restructure of the warehouse to provide a more 
cost-effective infrastructure, and a slimmed-down buying profile that reduced the volume of goods bought-in by 
the business. 

We can look ahead to further growth within this sector in the year to come. 
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Structure Governance and Management Governing document 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 and 
comply with the Charity's Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Companies Act 2006 and "Accounting 
and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice Applicable to Charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland 
(FRS102) (effective ptJanuary 2015)". 

The Accounts have departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the extent 
required to provide a true and fair view. This departure has involved following the Statement of Recommended 
Practice for Charities applying to FRS1 02 rather than the version of Statement of Recommended Practice which 
is referred to in the Regulations, but which has since been withdrawn. 

Appointment of trustees 

Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation (RCLCF) recognises that an effective board of trustees is essential if the 
charity is to succeed in achieving its objectives. The board must seek to be representative of the people with 
whom the charity works and must have available to it all of the knowledge and skills required to run the charity. 
Individual trustees must have sufficient knowledge, both of trusteeship in general and of the Foundation's 
activities, to enable them to carry out their role and to represent the charity at meetings and other events. 

Using a balance of skills and geography, trustee vacancies should be advertised; however, existing trustees 
and empioyees are encouraged to put forward names for consideration. The potential trustee will complete a 
skill matrix and have an induction period of three months before formal appointment by members by ordinary 
resolution. 

Trustees will serve for a three-year period before being eligible for re-election. Unless there are specific and 
special circumstances no trustee shall serve for more than two consecutive periods. The Chair and deputy 
Chair shall stand for re-election at each annual meeting. A trustee will be appointed to liaise with the Finance 
Director to discuss financial issues and be responsible for advising the Board of Trustees on financial matters. 
The charity has an indemnity provision in place for directors. 

Key management personnel include the senior management team. Remuneration in relation to key 
management is bench marked against comparable roles and organisations and then authorised by the board of 
trustees (see note 33). 

Trustee induction and training 

All potential trustees receive an introductory pack about the Foundation and the duties and responsibilities of a 
trustee. They will also have an induction program which will include visiting Foundation sites and meeting staff 
in all the core areas of work. An existing trustee will be appointed as a mentor to assist the potential trustee 
during the introductory period. 

Organisation 

The board of trustees administers the Foundation and comprises of eleven members that meet four times a 
year. The board has established four formally constituted committees, each with specific terms of reference and 
functions; Audit, Employment, Grants and Nominations. The final decision on all matters remains with the board. 

The Finance and Audit Committee supports the Chief Executive and the Finance Director in preparing for the 
annual financial statements audit. 

The Employment Committee is responsible for approval of pay and conditions of staff and Chief Executive and 
resolution on health and safety issues. 

The Scientific Grants Committee is responsible for considering all applications for grants and making 
recommendations to the Board. The committee also monitors the performance of all external research activities 
and reports to the Board. 
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The Nominations Committee is responsible for the recruitment and training of new trustees; this is convened 
ad hoc rather than as a formal committee. A Chief Executive is appointed by the trustees to be responsible for 
the executive management and its day to day direction in line with the strategic plan. 

Grant making policy 

The Foundation's mission is to beat lung cancer by funding innovative world-class research. Our aim through 
research into Early Detection and Patient Experience is to make a significant impact on lung cancer for the 
benefit of patients. Scientific excellence and relevance to lung cancer are the key principles which will guide the 
foundation's research. 

The Foundation's key research objectives are: 

• to build the talent pool in lung cancer research of the highest quality, in the UK and the Republic of Ireland. 

• to encourage scientific innovation. 

• to make every effort to engage in scientific and public dialogue and encourage scientists to communicate 
and collaborate with each other and ensure that the results are disseminated in an easy format to the 
general public. 

• to ensure that research translates into benefits for patients as quickly and effectively as possible. 

Awards are provided for pilot grants and project grants in universities, medical schools/teaching hospitals and 
research institutes within the UK and Ireland. 

Grants will be made in support of the research project including salaries, minor equipment and consumables 
costs. The Foundation will not directly employ staff on grants awarded for research projects. 

The Foundation will only undertake the funding of research that has been peer reviewed through its Grants 
Committee process. Details of how to apply for grants and scholarships, together with the relevant forms, are 
available by contacting our registered principal office. 

Related parties 

The charity has five wholly owned subsidiaries: Roy Castle Retail Ltd (03604677), Roy Castle Trading Ltd 
(03909935), Roy Castle Clean Air Ltd (05748774), Roy Castle Patient Support Ltd (06149309) (formerly known 
as Roy Castle Patient Care Ltd) and Cut Films Limited (07313137). 

Roy Castle Retail Ltd was established on 27 July 1998 to operate as a trading retail company in order to raise 
funds for charitable purposes. The company result for the year was a profit of £228,795 before Gift Aiding 
profits to the charity (2016: £144,439) and the company made a gift aid payment of £228,795 to the charity 
(2016: £171,553). 

Roy Castle Trading Ltd was established on 19 January 2000 to operate as a trading promotional company in 
order to raise funds for charitable purposes. The company result for the year was a £96,713 profit (2016: 
£92,273 profit) before a gift aid payment to the Charity of £119,763 (2016: £92,273). 

Roy Castle Clean Air Ltd was established on 20 March 2006 to operate as a trading smoking cessation service 
provider company under the brand 'Roy Castle Fag Ends'. The company result for the year was a loss of £nil 
(2016: loss of £18,573). 

Roy Castle Patient Support Ltd was established on 9 March 2007 to operate as a trading lung cancer support 
company in order to raise funds for a new patient support centre of excellence. An application for charitable 
status was made on 28th May 2008 with the Charities Commission; the application was successful, with Roy 
Castle Patient Support becoming a registered charity on 28th July 2008. The charity result for the year was a 
deficit of £nil (2016: deficit £22). 
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Cut Films Limited was established on 13 July 2010 to operate as a production company of Cut Films in order 
to stimulate discussions amongst young people about the issue of smoking. The company result for the year 
was at £1 06,534 loss (2016: £96,436 loss). 

The charity also has a further subsidiary, Cut Films Project Ltd, (acquired in July 2015) which it itself a registered 
charity and limited by guarantee it is therefore controlled through board appointments not share capital. The 
company result for 2017 was a deficit of £35,517. 

Risk management 

The trustees have a risk management strategy to assess business risks and to mitigate those risks. The strategy 
comprises: 

• a quarterly review of risks the Charity may face, prioritising them in terms of potential impact and likelihood 
of occurrence and 

• systems and procedures to mitigate those risks identified in the plan and to minimise the potential impact 
on the Charity. 

The trustees have identified the principal risks to the charity are a significant decrease in income through 
reduced legacies and public fundraising. We believe that these business risks would be effectively managed 
by restructuring existing resources and maintaining appropriate accessible cash reserves. 

Volunteers 

The Charity has significant support from volunteers in all our activities. Following an extensive review of the 
number of volunteers registered with us, we now have a pool of 400 'active' volunteers who regularly support 
our shops, administration and fundraising activities. Of these, currently 314 volunteers support our shop 
managers across the Merseyside and Cheshire area. 

We maintain partnerships with several external organisations, raising the profile of the charity as well as tapping 
new potential volunteers. These partners include Learn Direct, The Red Cross, Probation Service, The Works 
Company, the DWP and Tomorrow's People. 

We offer our volunteers the opportunity to achieve free qualifications in customer service, retail and leadership 
through Derby College. So far we have had 25 volunteers successfully complete some form of formal training. 

In total, we estimate that our volunteers contribute more than fifty thousand hours of their time per year, which 
is worth approximately £400,000. 

Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation is also represented on several Volunteer Forums across Merseyside. 

Our presence on these helps to raise awareness of the work done by the charity and helps to ensure observance 
and promotion of best practice in volunteer engagement. 

Financial Review Summary 

2017 is the fourth year of a revised 5 year strategy 2013 - 2018, a new 3 year strategic plan has been developed 
2018 - 2020, the results for 2017 are:- 

The Charity, as a group, made a deficit during 2017 of £616,064 (2016: £424,230). This is due to a decrease 
in income levels in a difficult economic environment. whilst maintaining a determination to deliver on our 
charitable objectives on a consistent basis. Thus, we have maintained our charitable spend while seeking longer 
term gains and objectives. 

Following the appointment of a new CEO during 2011 a review of the Charity's activities, strategy and impact 
was undertaken which resulted in the development of a revised five-year strategy that commenced in 2013. 

There are two main business themes central to the success of the strategy that began in 2013: 

19 



Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 
Trustees' Consolidated Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2017 

• To increase the level of charitable activity we fund. 

• To achieve a national profile by increased regional activity, becoming genuinely local across the country. 

The themes are linked and each theme runs through each of the charity's key activities, influencing our 
Research, Support and Prevention Strategies; they are also reflected in our Income Generation Strategy and 
Communications Strategy and in directing how our corporate structure will provide a solid foundation for the 
charity to build on. 

Full details of the current Strategic Plan 2013 to 2018 can be found on our website www.roycastle.org 

Charitable expenditure 

Total charitable expenditure for 2017 was £2,643,163 (2016: £2,743,350). 

Prevention expenditure decreased significantly to £282,570 in 2017 (2016: £964,080) due to the cessation of 
the stop smoking services. However, the work undertaken via the Cut Film Project, an innovative youth 
programme delivered by the charity to highlight the dangers of smoking and tobacco continued. 

Research expenditure was £1,418,287 in 2017 (£1,234,892 in 2016), with charitable research grants of 
£396,372 (2016: £547,539). 

Funding has been made to four additional projects, plus continuing distributions to the University of Liverpool 
(Liverpool Lung Project) and to support a Clinical Research Fellowship at the University of Nottingham. 

Income and funding 

Total income for the charity reduced by 6% to £4,505,127 (2016: £4,795,618) due in main to a reduction in 
donations and legacy income. 

Legacy income in 2017 was £442,395 (2016: £526,459) which follows a particularly good couple of years in 
2014 and 2015 for legacy income. Other voluntary donations fell slightly to £404,259 from £409,967 in 2016, 
however in memoriam donations fell to £ 152, 713 from £190,492 in 2016 and this type of personal, individual 
support remains a key income stream. 

Sponsorship income decreased in 2017 to £278,085 from £326,999. 

Gift aid on donations remained fairly stable as £108,266 (2016: £92,129) 

Retail performed well with a gross profit of £1,901,751 (2016: £1,700,228). This was driven by strong sales 
from our shops in Heswall, Chester and Moreton, as well as furniture retail outlets in Chester, Smithdown Road 
and Crosby. We also opened our latest shop, an upmarket outlet in Warrington. 

Income from Charitable activities fell significantly to £33,205 from £431,239 in 2016 this was due to the end of 
the smoking cessation services we provided to Liverpool City Council. 

Investments 

The Foundation holds £1,380,714 (2016: £1,259,051) in listed investments that generated an income of 
£40,432 in the year (2016: £37,583). In the year there was a gain of £83,063 (2016: £119,511), the performance 
of the fund has met the expectations of the Board of Trustees and is consistent with industry standards. 

Rathbones an independent stockbroker manages the investments within defined areas. The stockbrokers have 
been instructed not to invest in tobacco related companies and other socially unacceptable companies. 

The current investment policy of the trustees is to hold a large proportion of surplus assets of the Foundation 
in cash and near cash to ensure a stable platform for the organisation's continued activities. 
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Reserves 

The trustees have adopted a reserves policy which they consider appropriate to ensure the continued ability of 
the Foundation to meet its objectives. 

During the year the trustees reviewed the reserves policy which concluded that to allow the Foundation to be 
managed efficiently a general reserve, excluding investments and tangible fixed assets, equivalent to 
approximately one year's unrestricted non-trading expenditure is required together with the financial 
commitments not accrued in the financial statements. 

As at 31 December 2017 the actual reserves less tangible fixed assets are over £1.3 million which is under the 
calculated policy level of reserves of £1.4million. However, the listed investments and cash held at the balance 
sheet date totals £1.9 million and the trustees are satisfied that the Foundation can meet its funding 
commitments. At the year end the foundation had restricted reserves of £411,320 (2016: £475,903), 
unrestricted reserves £1,126,716 (2016: £1,678,197) and total reserves of £1 ,538,036 (2016: £2,154,100). 

The Foundation operates an ethical reserves policy as part of which it does not invest in the tobacco industry. 

Plans for future periods 

The charity has ambitious growth plans for the next five years, which are outlined in its 2013-2018 Strategy. 
These include: 

Goal1: To increase the level of support for patients and carers by increasing the number of support groups 
across the UI< to 70, the number of regional information days each year GE; well 36 offering training 
and bursaries for up to 30 group facilitators per year. 

Goal2: To ensure all 40,000 people diagnosed with lung cancer in the UK every year have access to the 
best treatment, care and support 

Goal3: To increase the funds available for patient relief grants from £50,000 to £100,000 p.a in three years, 
across the UK (supporting circa 500 people with lung cancer). 

Goal4: To grow our annual spend on lung cancer research over the next three years. 

Goal5: To educate young people via our Cut Films Project helping prevent them from starting to smoke. 

Statement of trustees' responsibilities 

The trustees (who are also directors of The Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation for the purposes of company 
law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice). 

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the incoming resources and 
application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charitable group for that period. In 
preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 

• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
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• prepare the financial statements on the 'going concern' basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
charitable company will continue in business. 

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy 
at any time the financial position of the charitable company and group and enable them to ensure that the 
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) 
Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). They are also responsible 
for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps 
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation 
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors 

The trustees who were in office on the date of approval of these financial statements have confirmed, as far 
as they are aware, that there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware. Each of the 
trustees have confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as trustees in order to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been communicated to 
the auditors. 

Auditors 

The auditors RSM UK Audit LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in office. 

Staff 

We would like to pay tribute to the staff of the Foundation who continue to show considerable enthusiasm and 
commitment. 

Partners and supporters 

We would like to record a sincere thanks to all our partners and supporters who have helped the Charity in any 
way this year. 

Small Company Provisions 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable for companies entitled to the small 
companies exemption. 

By order of the trustees 

~::CB~~ 
Chairman 

cl' August 2018 
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Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation the 'parent charitable 
company' and its subsidiaries (the 'group') for the year ended 31 December 2017 which comprise the Group 
and Parent Charitable Company Statement of Financial Activities, the Group and Parent Charitable Company 
Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent Charitable Company Cash Flow Statements and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has 
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 
102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent charitable company's affairs as at 31 
December 2017; and of the group's and the parent charitable company's incoming resources and 
application of resources, including their income and expenditure, for the year then ended; 
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and 
have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act 2011, the Charities 
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and regulations 6 and 8 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) 
Regulations 2006 (as amended). 

Basis for opinion 

We have been appointed auditor under section 44(1 )(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 
2005, section 151 of the Charities Act 2011 and under the Companies Act 2006 and report in accordance with 
regulations made under those Acts. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent charitable 
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to 
report to you where: 

the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 
is not appropriate; or 
the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may 
cast significant doubt about the group's or parent charitable company's ability to continue to adopt the 
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue. 

Other information 

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included 
in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in 
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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In connection with o~r audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinions on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit 
the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 
the Trustees' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent charitable company and their 
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' 
Report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 , the Charities Act 
2011 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended) require us to report to you if, in 
our opinion: 

the parent charitable company has not kept proper and adequate accounting records, or returns adequate 
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or 
the parent charitable company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 
returns; or 
certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

Responsibilities of trustees 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities set out on page 21-22 the trustees (who 
are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such 
internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group's and parent 
charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the group 
or parent charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with IGAs (UI() will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website at http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.This description forms part of our 
auditor's report. 
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Use of our report 
This report is made exclusively to the members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the 
Companies Act 2006, and to the charitable company's trustees, as a body, in accordance with section 44(1)(c) 
of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and regulation 10 of the Charities Accounts 
(Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended) and the Charities Act 2011. Our audit work has been undertaken 
so that we might state to the members and the charitable company's trustees those matters we are required to 
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company, its members as a body, and its 
trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Anna Spencer-Gray 
For and on behalf of RSM UKAUDIT LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants 
20 Chapel Street 
Liverpool 
L3 gAG 

Date: 2-ct ~ 2-DL8 
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Consolidated 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

Notes Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2017 2017 2017 2016 
£ £ £ £ 

Income & Endowments from: 

Donations & Legacies 10 1,222,273 379,387 1,601,660 1,747,630 
Charitable activities 11 16,392 16,813 33,205 415,781 
Other trading activities 12 2,582,417 2,582,417 2,391,241 
Investments 13 170,246 170,.246 124,855 , 
Other 117,599 _'1'17,~99 116,111 ., 

Total income 4,108,927 396,200 4,505,127 4,795,618 

Expenditure on: 

Raising funds 14 2,561,091 2,561,091 2,596,009 
Charitable activities 15 2,182,380 460,783 2,643,163 2,743,350 

tÒ: ~ 

Total expenditure 4,743,471 460,783 '5,204;!!54 '5,339,359 

Net gains on investments 25 83,063 83,063 119,511 

Net expenditure (551,481) (64,583) (616,064) (424,230) 

Net movement in funds (551,481) (64,583) (616,064) (424,230) 

Reconciliation of funds:- 

Total funds brought forward 1,678,197 475,903 2,154,100 2,578,330 

Total funds carried forward 1,126,716 411,320 1,538,036 2,154,100 
---- 

All gains and losses recognised in the year are included above. 

All activities derive from continuing operations. 

The notes on pages 35 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Charity Only 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2017 2017 2017 2016 

Notes £ £ £ £ 

Donations & Legacies 17 1,459,983 379,387 1,839,370 1,899,036 
Charitable activities 18 8,322 8,322 46,252 
Other trading activities 19 446,803 446,803 406,211 
Investments 20 100,178 100,178 109,425 
Other 117,599 117,599 116,111 

Total income 2,132,885 379,387 2,512,272 2,577,035 

Expenditure on: 

Raising funds 21 719,833 719,833 768,368 
Charitable activities 22 1,916,494 450,899 2,367,393 2,607,323 

Total expenditure 2,636,327 450,899 3,087,226 3,375,691 

Net gains on investments 25 89,173 89,173 119,511 

Net expenditure (414,269) (71,512) (485,781) (679,145) 

Net movement in funds (414,269) (71,512) (485,781) (679,145) 

Reconciliation of funds:- 

Total funds brought forward 1,529,008 439,829 1,968,837 2,647,982 

Total funds carried forward 1,114,739 368,317 1,483,056 1,968,837 

All activities derive from continuing operations. 

All gains and losses recognised in the year are included above. 

The notes on pages 35 to 59 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2017 

2017 2016 
Notes £ £ £ £ 

Fixed assets 
Tangible assets 26 188,991 237,434 
Investments held as fixed assets 27 1,380,714 1,259,051 

Total fixed assets 1,569,705 1,496,485 

Current assets 
Stocks 29 89,977 78,785 
Debtors 30 568,759 520,174 
Cash at bank and in hand 601,503 1,267,195 

Total current assets 1,260,239 1,866,154 

Creditors: amounts falling due 
within one year 31 (1,291,908) (1,208,539) 

Net current (Iiabilities)/assets (31,669) 657,615 

The total net assets of the charity 1,538,036 2,154,100 
---- 

The total net assets of the charity are funded by the funds of the charity, as follows:- 

Restricted funds 
Restricted Revenue Funds 36 411,320 475,903 

Unrestricted Funds 
Unrestricted Revenue Funds 36 1,214,240 1,765,721 

Deficit on non-charitable trading funds 36 (87,524) (87,524) 

Total charity funds 1,538,036 2,154,100 

The Trustees have prepared the group accounts in accordance with section 398 of the Companies Act 2006 
and section 44 of the Charities and Trustees Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. 

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Companies Act 
2006 with respect to accounting records and the preparation of accounts. 

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions in Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 
applicable to companies subject to the small companies regime. 

Approved by the board of trustees on t__ ~~t~ and signed on their behalf by: 

~~~----¡ 
MAX STEINBERG CBE 

Trustee 

The notes all pages JG to G9 form all inteqral part ot these financial slalemeuls. 

29 



Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Charity Only Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2017 

2017 2016 
Notes £ £ £ £ 

Fixed assets 
Tangible assets 26 45,721 82,997 
Investments held as fixed assets 27 1,510,314 1,388,648 

Total fixed assets 1,556,035 1,471,645 

Current assets 
Stocks 29 9,364 6,670 
Debtors 30 654,120 747,355 
Cash at bank and in hand 416,125 829,648 

T otal cu rrent assets 1,079,609 1,583,673 

Creditors: amounts falling due 
within one year 31 (1,152,588) (1,086,481) 

Net current (Iiabilities)/assets (72,979) 497,192 

The total net assets of the charity 1,483,056 1,968,837 

The total net assets of the charity are funded by the funds of the charity, as follows:- 

Restricted funds 
Restricted Revenue Funds 36 368,317 439,829 

Unrestricted Funds 
Unrestricted Revenue Funds 36 1,114,739 1,529,008 

Total charity funds 1,483,056 1,968,837 

The Trustees have prepared the group accounts in accordance with section 398 of the Companies Act 2006 
and section 44 of the Charities and Trustees Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. 

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Companies Act 
2006 with respect to accounting records and the preparation of accounts. 

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions in Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 
applicable to companies subject to the small companies regime 

Approved by the board of trustees antU .b Lott and signed on their behalf by: ~.o~C_¿ 
MAX STEINBERG CBE 

Trustee 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2017 

2017 
£ 

2016 
£ 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Net cash used in operating activities as shown 
on page 32 (763,583) (545,381 ) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 
Dividends received 
Other investment income, including rents from investments 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Receipts from sale of tangible fixed assets 
Proceeds from sales of investments 
Purchase of investments 
Increase in cash 

1,910 
40,433 

127,904 
(33,758) 

2,971 
37,583 
68,843 
(41,932) 
53,819 

101,920 
(276,899) 

158,490 
(147,743) 
(49,345) 

Net cash used in investing activities 97,891 (53,695) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (665,692) (599,076) 

Cash movements 

Change in cash and cash equivalents from activities in the year 
ended 31 December 2017 (665,692) (599,076) 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2017 1,267,195 1,866,271 

Cash at bank and in hand at 31 December 601,503 1,267,195 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) 

2017 
£ 

2016 
£ 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities 

Net income shown in the Statement of Financial Activities (616,064) (424,230) 

Adjustments for :- 

Depreciation charges 
Net change on investment assets 
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 
Decrease in current asset investments 
(Increase)/decrease in stocks 
Increase in debtors 
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 

82,199 100,649 
(83,063) (119,511) 

(170,247) (109,397) 
78,161 

(11,192) 18,721 
(48,585) (30,077) 
83,369 (59,697) 

(763,583) (545,381 ) 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

601,503 1,267,195 

601,503 1,267,195 
----- 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash in hand at for the year ended 31 December 2017 

Total cash and cash equivalents 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Charity Only Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2017 

Cash flows used in operating activities 
2017 

£ 
2016 
£ 

Net cash used in operating activities as shown 
on page 34 (481,209) (649,659) 

Cash flows used in investing activities 
I nterest received 
Dividends received 
Other investment income, including rents from investments 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Receipts from sale of tangible fixed assets 
Proceeds from sales of investments 
Purchase of investments 

1,910 2,971 
40,433 37,611 
57,835 68,843 

(21,878) 
35,064 

115,253 101,916 
(147,745) (276,899) 

67,686 (52,372) Net cash used in investing activities 

Overall cash used in all activities (413,523) (702,031) 

Cash movements 

Change in cash and cash equivalents from activities in the 
year ended 31 December 2017 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2017 

(413,523) 
829,648 

(702,023) 
1,531,671 

Cash at bank and in hand at 31 December 2017 416,125 829,648 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Charity Only Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

(485,781) (679,145) 

37,276 44,810 
(89,173) (119,511) 

(100,179) (109,425) 
78,161 

(2,694) 6,571 
93,235 235,889 
66,107 (107,009) 

(481,209) (649,659) 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

416,125 829,648 

416,125 829,648 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities 

Net income shown in the Statement of Financial Activities 

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation charges 
Net change on investment assets 
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 
Decrease in current asset investments 
(Increase)/decrease in stocks 
Decrease in debtors 
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 

Net cash used by operating activities 

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 
Cash in hand at for the year ended 31 December 2017 

Total cash and cash equivalents 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 

1 Accounting policies 

Policies relating to the production of the accounts. 

Basis of preparation and accounting convention 

These consolidated accounts have been prepared on the accrual basis, under the historical cost 
convention, and in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended 
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS1 02) and the Companies Act 2006. 

Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS1 02. 

The registered office and principal place of business is 4-6 Enterprise Way, Wavertree Technology Park, 
Liverpool, L 13 1 FS. 

The Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) and balance sheet consolidate the financial statements of 
the Charity and its subsidiary undertakings. The results, assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries are 
consolidated on a line by line basis. 

The accounts are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the charity. Monetary amounts 
in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £. 

Control of members of the group and transfer of funds 

The parent charity has concluded that control exists over its subsidiaries for the following reasons: - 
They are either a wholly owned subsidiary with directors appointed by the Roy Castle Lung 
Cancer Foundation or a charity and company limited by guarantee and controlled by trustees 
appointed by the Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation. 

Legal Status 

The Charity is a company limited by guarantee, has no share capital and is governed by its Memorandum 
and Articles of Association. The liability of each member in the event of winding up is £10. The company 
is registered as a charity with both the Charity Commission and the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator. 

Going Concern 

The Group and Charity produces an annual budget and has a fully costed strategy until 2020, after 
reviewing the Charity's strategic forecasts and projections, the directors have a reasonable expectation 
that the group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The 
group therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its consolidated financial 
statements. 

Policies relating to categories of income and income recognition. 

Accounting for deferred income and income received in advance 

Where terms and conditions relating to income have not been met or uncertainty exists as to whether the 
charity can meet any terms or conditions otherwise within its control, income is not recognised but is 
deterred as a liability until it is probable that the terms or conditions imposed can be met. 

Any grant that is subject to performance-related conditions received in advance of delivering the goods 
and services required by that condition, or is subject to unmet conditions wholly outside the control of the 
recipient charity, is accounted for as a liability and shown on the balance sheet as deferred income. 
Deferred income is released to income in the reporting period in which the performance-related or other 
conditions that limit recognition are met. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 

1 Accounting policies (continued) 

When income from a grant or donation has not been recognised due to the conditions applying to the gift 
not being wholly within the control of the recipient charity, it is disclosed as a contingent asset if receipt of 
the grant or donation is probable once those conditions are met. 

Where time related conditions are imposed or implied by a funder, then the income is apportioned to the 
time periods concerned and, where applicable, is accounted for as a liability and shown on the balance 
sheet as deferred income. When grants are received in advance of the expenditure on the activity funded 
by them, but there are no specific time related conditions, then the income is not deferred. 

Any condition that allows for the recovery by the donor of any unexpended part of a grant does not prevent 
recognition of the income concerned, but a liability to any repayment is recognised when repayment 
becomes probable. 

Income from legacies 

Income from legacies is recognised when the charity has sufficient evidence that a gift has been left to 
them, that where required, probate has been granted, the executor is satisfied that the property in question 
will not be required to satisfy claims in the estate, that it is probable that the amount will be received by 
the charity, and the amount to be received can be estimated with sufficient accuracy, and that any 
conditions attached to the legacy are either within the control of the charity or have been met. 

Where a payment is received from an estate or is notified as receivable by the executors after the reporting 
date and before the accounts are authorised for issue but it is clear that the payment had been agreed by 
the executors prior to the end of the reporting period, then the amount concerned is treated as an adjusting 
event and accrued as income in the accounting period if receipt is probable. 

Where the charity has established entitlement to a legacy but there is uncertainty as to the amount of the 
payment, details of the legacy are disclosed as a contingent asset until the criteria for income recognition 
are met. Where a legacy is subject to the interest of a life tenant, the legacy is not recognised as income 
until the death of the life tenant. 

Where there is any doubt that full settlement of a legacy debtor will be received, then an adjustment is 
made to reduce the amount of the legacy debtor and legacy income rather than charging the adjustment 
as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Activities. 

Donated goods, facilities and services 

Donated fixed assets are recognised at the current fair value. All such donations are recognised as 
donation income, and debited to fixed assets. 

Donated goods that are not fixed assets are accounted for at a fair value, unless it is impractical to reliably 
measure the value of the donated items. 

It is deemed impracticable to measure the fair value of goods donated for resale and that costs of valuation 
outweigh the benefits, as a consequence the value of donated goods are recognised as income when 
sold. 

Donated services and facilities (including seconded staff and use of property) are included in the accounts 
on the basis of the value of the gift to the charity. 

All donated services and facilities are recognised as donation income when received (provided the value 
of the gift can be measured reliably) and recognised as an expense with an equivalent value. 

36 



Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 

1 Accounting policies (continued) 

Lottery Income Policy 

Lottery income is recognised on an accruals basis, the timing of the accounting of the income being 
determined by the date of the lottery game played. 

Rental Income Policy 

Rental income on assets leased under operating leases in recognised on a straight-line basis over the 
lease tern and is present within investment income. 

Policies relating to expenditure on goods and services provided to the charity. 

Recognition of liabilities and expenditure 

A liability, and the related expenditure, is recognised when a legal or constructive obligation exists as a 
result of a past event, and when it is more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefits will be 
required in settlement, and when the amount of the obligation can be measured or reliably estimated. 

Liabilities arising from future funding commitments and constructive obligations, including performance 
related grants, where the timing or the amount of the future expenditure required to settle the obligation 
are uncertain, give rise to a provision in the accounts, which is reviewed at the accounting year end. The 
provision is increased to reflect any increases in liabilities, and is decreased by the utilisation of any 
provision within the period, and reversed if any provision is no longer required. These movements are 
charged or credited to the respective funds and activities to which the provision relates. 

Allocating costs to activities 

Direct costs that are specifically related to an activity are allocated to that activity. Shared direct costs and 
support costs are apportioned between activities. 

The basis for apportionment, which is consistently applied, and proportionate to the circumstances, is:- 

Direct Staff Cost - Directly allocated on the basis of time spent in connection with any particular activity. 

Indirect Staffing - on a per capita basis, based on the number of people employed within any particular 
activity. Indirect staff costs are allocated as follows: 

• Directors and CEO, estimated time spent on operational activities 
• Finance, estimated time spent on governance and remaining costs allocated on number of full-time 

equivalent (FTE) staff 
• HR, allocated on number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff excluding research staff 
• Office services and IT, allocated on number of full-time equivalent (FTE) staff 

Premises related costs - on a per capita basis, based on the number of people employed within any 
particular activity. 

Non-specific support costs - on a per capita basis, based on the number of people employed within any 
particular activity. 

Estimation techniques used in apportioning costs are based on FTE time spent on activities. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 

1 Accounting policies (continued) 

Volunteers 

In accordance with the SORP, and in recognition of the difficulties in placing a monetary value on the 
contribution from volunteers, the contribution of volunteers is not included within the income of the charity. 

However, the trustees value the significant contribution made to the activities of the charity by unpaid 
volunteers and this is described more fully in Note 7 and the strategic report. 

Policies relating to assets, liabilities and provisions and other matters. 

Fixed Asset Investments 

Fixed asset investments in quoted shares, traded bonds, investment properties and similar investments 
are shown initially at cost upon acquisition and at their market value at the balance sheet date at the end 
of the financial period. Investment properties are not depreciated. 

Fixed asset investments in unlisted equities are shown at the balance sheet date at cost and subsequently 
measured a cost less any accumulated impairment losses, a review is undertaken at each year end as to 
whether the asset should be written down. 

All gains on fixed asset investments, whether realised or unrealised, are included in the Statement of 
Financial Activities. 

Tangible fixed assets 

Fixed assets costing more than £500 are capitalised and valued at historic cost except for items individually 
below threshold but included in a project whose overall cost is greater than £500. 

The Charity sublets a portion of its head office, however the fair value of the investment property 
component cannot be measured reliably without undue cost or effort, as such the entire property is 
accounted for as property within tangible fixed assets. 

Tangible fixed assets are measured at their original cost value. Cost value includes all costs expended in 
bringing the asset into its intended working condition. 

Depreciation has been provided at the following rates in order to write off the assets to their anticipated 
residual value over their estimated useful lives. 

Leasehold premises 
Fixtures and Fittings 
Research, office and computer equipment 

over the length of the lease 
over the length of the lease 
between 10% and 25% 

Accounting for capital grants and fixed asset funds 

Gifts of tangible fixed assets or grants of a capital nature, given for the purposes of acquiring specific 
assets to be fully utilised in the furtherance of the objects of the charity, are credited to fixed asset funds 
after the donated asset has been received or sums have been properly expended on the restricted 
purpose. 

Where the terms of the gift require the charity to hold the asset on an ongoing basis for a specific purpose, 
then the fixed asset fund so created is categorised as a restricted fixed asset fund. 

Where the terms of the gift are met once the asset is acquired, so allowing the charity to use the asset on 
an unrestricted basis, including the right to receive the proceeds of any future sale of the asset on an 
unrestricted basis, then the fixed asset fund so created is categorised as a designated fixed asset fund. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 

1 Accounting policies (continued) 

When assets are acquired for the furtherance of the charity's objects, utilising the charity's own unrestricted 
funds, a transfer is made from unrestricted funds to a designated fixed asset fund. 

Whether acquired with unrestricted or restricted funds, the asset acquired is initially shown in the balance 
sheet at the full cost of acquisition or subsequent revaluation. 

As the related assets are depreciated, in accordance with the depreciation policy in order to reflect the 
diminution in the asset a transfer is made from the relevant fixed asset funds to either unrestricted or 
restricted revenue funds, as appropriate to the terms of the original gift, if any. 

The effect of this policy is that the aggregate of all fixed asset funds shall equate to the net book value of 
fixed assets. 

In the first year that this policy was adopted, a transfer to fixed asset funds was made equivalent to the 
net book value of the assets. 

Stocks and work in progress 

Stock consists of purchased goods for resale. Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Donated items sourced from both individuals and organisations are not included in the financial 
statements until they are sold. 

Debtors 

Debtors are measured at their recoverable amounts at the balance sheet date. 

Creditors and provisions 

Creditors and provisions are recognised where the charity has a present obligation resulting 
from a past event that will probably result in the transfer of funds to a third party and the 
amount due to settle the obligation can be measured or estimated reliably. Creditors and 
provisions are normally recognised at their transaction amount. 

Financial instruments including cash and bank balances 

The charity only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial 
instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently 
measured at their settlement value with the exception of bank loans which are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Cash held by the charity is included at the amount 
actually held and counted at the year end. Bank balances, whether in credit or overdrawn, are shown at 
the amounts properly reconciled to the bank statements. 

All financial assets and liabilities are measured at cost. 

Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the 
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the profit and loss account. 

Leasing 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 

1 Accounting policies (continued) 

Pensions - defined contribution schemes 

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions are charged to the profit 
and loss account as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The assets of the 
scheme are held separately from those of the company. 

Charitable commitments 

Commitments that are legally binding on the trustees are accounted for as a resource expended in the 
SOFA. Where the intention of financial support is not binding on the trustees, such intentions are not 
accrued for but are disclosed separately in a note to the accounts 

Branch Offices 

The Charity carries out some activities through offices that use the same name as the Charity, raise funds 
for the Charity and receive support from the Charity through advice and publicity materials. All transactions 
are accounted for gross in the accounts and all assets and liabilities are included in the Charity's balance 
sheet. 

Consolidation 

Roy Castle Retail Ltd (Company number 03604677), Roy Castle Trading Ltd (Company number 
03909935), Roy Castle Clean Air Ltd (Company number 05748774), Roy Castle Patient Support Ltd 
(Company number 06149309), Cut Films Project Ltd (Company number 06848267) and its wholly owned 
subsidiary Cut Films Limited (Company number 07313137) is controlled by the Roy Castle Lung Cancer 
Foundation and is consolidated in these accounts on a line by line basis. 

2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

In the application of the charity's accounting policies, the trustees are required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 

The trustees believe that estimates and assumptions do not have a significant risk of causing a material 
difference to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

Estimate of Dilapidation Accrual: 

Dilapidations are accrued for on the basis of historical costs incurred as a proportion of rental values paid 
and realistic expectation following an internal review of the property. These assumptions are reviewed on 
an annual basis. There is a specific accrual included in the 2017 accounts in relation to the end of lease 
for the head office following a report from the landlord's surveyor and builders estimate of £1 05,000. 

Recoverability of group Debts: 

Group debt is reviewed annually and any amounts deemed irrecoverable are provided for in the Charity 
only accounts. At 31 December 2017, intercompany debts due to the Charity have been written down to 
£nil on the basis of the subsidiaries' unlikely ability to repay these amounts. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 

3 Liability to taxation 

As a registered charity, the organisation is exempt from income and corporation tax to the extent that its 
income and gains are applied towards the charitable objects of the charity and for no other purpose. 
Value Added Tax is not recoverable by the charity, and is therefore included in the relevant costs in the 
Statement of Financial Activities. 

Value Added Tax is recoverable by Roy Castle Retail Ltd, Roy Castle Clean Air Ltd and Cut Films Ltd, it 
is therefore not reported or included in the costs or income figures of these companies or consolidated into 
the group accounts. 

4 Winding up or dissolution of the charity 

If upon winding up or dissolution of the charity there remain any assets, after the satisfaction of all debts 
and liabilities, the assets represented by the accumulated fund shall be transferred to some other 
charitable body or bodies having similar objects to the charity. 

5 Net (expenditure)/income before tax in the financial year 2017 
£ 

2016 
£ 

The net (expenditure)/income before tax in the financial year is 
stated after charging:- 

Depreciation of owned fixed assets 
Operating leases 

82,199 
665,087 

100,649 
682,032 

---- ---- 

Exceptional costs included in the charity only statement of financial activities of £40,302 (2016: £474,844) 
was in relation to the write off of intercompany balances. 

Fees payable to the charity's auditor: 2017 
£ 

2016 
£ 

For audit services 
Audit of the financial statements of the group and charity 17,800 18,254 

17,800 18,254 
---- ---- 

Taxation compliance services 
All other non-audit services 

4,125 
7,450 

2,000 
8,000 

11,575 10,000 
---- ---- ---- 

6 Interest payable 2017 
£ 

2016 
£ 

Loan interest 
Bank interest payable 

835 
597 

911 
573 

1,432 1,484 
---- ---- 

7 The contribution of volunteers 

The Charity has significant support from volunteers in all our activities. Currently we have 503 volunteers 
registered with us, and they regularly support us in the Foundations' shops, smoking cessation service, 
administration and in fund raising. In total volunteers contribute an estimated fifty thousand hours per year 
which is the equivalent to over 27 full-time employees. 

The charity does not recognise in financial terms in the accounts the valuable contribution of our volunteers. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 

8 Staff costs and emoluments 

Salary costs 2017 
£ 

2,216,334 
150,134 
29,222 

2016 
£ 

2,625,943 
172,655 
32,892 

Gross Salaries 
Employer's National Insurance for all staff 
Employer's operating costs of defined contribution pension schemes 

Total salaries, wages and related costs 2,395,690 2,831,490 

The average number of staff deployed in different activities in the year was:- 

Engaged on charitable activities 
Engaged on fundraising activities 
Engaged on management and administration 
Engaged on retail activities 

2017 
£ 

21 
17 
15 
67 

2016 
£ 

29 
21 
17 
76 

120 143 

The average number of staff in charity only in the year was 51 (2016: 52). 

The charity has no seconded and third party staff during the account period. 

The number of employees whose emoluments including taxable benefits but excluding employer's pension 
contributions fall into the following bands were :- 

2017 
£ 

2016 
£ 

£70,001 to £80,000 

---- ----- 

Chief Executive Officer/ Highest paid employee 
2017 
£ 

68,500 
3,425 

2016 
£ 

67,000 
3,350 

The remuneration in the year was 
Pension contributions paid by the employer 

Total remuneration package included in total salaries above 71,925 70,350 ---- 

9 Remuneration and payments to Trustees and persons connected with them 

No trustees or persons connected with them received any remuneration from the charity, or any related 
entity. 

Trustees were reimbursed expenses incurred which amounted to £1,804 (2016: £2,070) in relation to 
travel expenses. 
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Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation 

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 

10 Donations and Legacies - Consolidated 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

Fundz Funds Funds Funds 
2017 2017 2017 2016 
£ £ £ £ 

Donations and gifts from individuals 
Donations 20,776 20,776 19,262 
Employee Fundraising 23,351 23,351 10,221 
Individual Giving 266,412 266,412 281,433 
Payroll Giving 111,153 111,153 113,275 
Balance sheet value of Cut Films 

421,692 421,692 424,191 

Legacies receivable 
Legacies receivable 442,395 442,395 526,459 

442,395 442,395 526,459 

Revenue grants and donations from non-public bodies 
Corporate Grants 68,084 253 68,337 75,198 
Corporate Events 1,657 1,657 7,272 
Trusts 21,968 106,547 128,515 104,890 

91,709 106,800 198,509 187,360 

Sponsorship 
Pause for Hope 8,361 8,361 1,032 
Sponsorship 8,898 260,826 269,724 325,967 

8,898 269,187 278,085 326,999 

In Memoriam 
In Memoriam 149,313 3,400 152,713 190,492 

149,313 3,400 152,713 190,492 

Gift Aid on Donations 
Gift Aid on Donations 108,266 108,266 92,129 

108,266 108,266 92,129 

Total Donations and Legacies - Consolidated 1,222,273 379,387 1,601,660 1,747,630 
----- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- 

Of the 2016 income, £1,378,860 was unrestricted and £368,770 was restricted. 
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11 Income from charitable activities - Consolidated 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2017 2017 2017 2016 
£ £ £ £ 

Income from charitable trading 
Ancillary trading in support of charitable objects 6,245 

6,245 

Charitable income from funders 
SLA smoking cessation service provision - 
Liverpool CC 8,070 16,813 24,883 362,540 
Prospect monies 40,000 

8,070 16,813 24,883 402,540 

Reimbursement 
Minor reimbursed expenses and honoraria 8,322 8,322 6,996 

8,322 8,322 6,996 

Total income from charitable activities 16,392 16,813 33,205 415,781 
----- --- --- ---- ---- --- --- --- 

Total income from charitable activities of £33,205 split by activity is split by £8,322 (2016: £6,996) 
research and £24,883 (2016: £408,785) prevention. 

Of the 2016 income, £349,918 was unrestricted and £81,321 was restricted. 

£15,458 of letting income in 2016 has been reclassified this year as property rental income in investment 
income to reflect the stream more appropriately. 

12 Income from other, non-charitable, trading activities - Consolidated 

Unrestricted Restricted 
Funds Funds 
2017 2017 
£ £ 

Total 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

Income from fundraising events 
Income from the sale of donated and brought in goods 
Sponsorships and social lotteries which cannot be 
considered pure donations 

566,955 
1,953,191 

62,271 

566,955 
- 1,953,191 

62,271 

502,283 
1,795,140 

93,818 

2,582,417 - 2,582,417 2,391,241 
"....,.------,-,- --- --==== ======= 

Total income from other non-charitable, trading activities split by activity is split by £629,226 (2016: 
£596,101) fundraising and £1,953,191 (2016: £1,795,140) sales of donated and related goods. 

All of the 2016 income was unrestricted. 
£273,440 of trading activities income in 2016 has been reclassified this year as sale of donated goods 
income to reflect the income stream more appropriately. 
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13 Investment income - Consolidated 

Property Rental Income 
Dividend Income 
Bank Interest Receivable 

Unrestricted 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

127,904 
40,432 

1,910 

170,246 

Restricted 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

Total 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

127,904 
40,432 

1,910 

170,246 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

84,301 
37,583 
2,971 

----- ---- ---_ ---- ----- ---- ---- ----- 
124,855 

£15,458 of letting income from 2016 was reclassified this year and moved from letting income in charitable 
activities to property rental income in investment income to better reflect the type of income. 

All of2016 income was unrestricted. 

14 Expenditure on raising funds and costs of investment management - Consolidated 

Cost of fundraising activities 
Marketing & advertising of fundraising 
Costs of seeking donations, grants and legacies 
Cost of operating social lotteries 
Costs of staging fund raising events 
Costs of charity shop selling goods 
Gross wages and salaries - fundraising activities 
Temporary Staff - fundraising activities 
Other Direct Costs - Fundraising Activities 
Staff Training & Welfare - Fundraising Activities 
Travel and Subsistence - Fundraising Activities 

Of the 2016 expenditure £2,583,016 was unrestricted. 

Unrestricted Restricted 
Funds Funds 
2017 2017 
£ £ 

29,211 
17,220 

369 
18,695 

137,879 
1,774,324 
408,840 

1,716 
148,446 

9,719 
14,672 

2,561,091 

Total 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

29,211 
17,220 

369 
18,695 

137,879 
- 1,774,324 

408,840 
1,716 

148,446 
9,719 

14,672 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

38,010 
38,298 

371 
20,643 
149,496 

1,712,638 
444,226 

8,673 
159,731 

9,692 
14,231 

- 2,561,091 2,596,009 
----- ---- ---_ ---- 
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15 Expenditure on charitable activities - Consolidated 

Direct spending 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Grant funding 
Individual grants 
Organisation grants 
Staff costs 

Support costs (all unrestricted) 
Staff costs 
Premises costs 
Legal and professional costs 
Financial 
Other 

Governance costs 

Note 

Staff 
costs 
2017 
£ 

Other 
2017 
£ 

165,346 
413,805 

380,027 579,151 

Total 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

165,346 
793,832 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

118,708 
993,803 

959,178 1,112,511 

88,350 
396,372 
30,798 

547,429 
309,335 

8,976 
79,972 

156,820 

65,933 

73,725 
547,539 
31,024 

30,798 484,722 515,520 652,288 

16 Summary of charitable costs by activity - Consolidated 

380,027 

24 
30,798 

547,429 

88,350 
396,372 

309,335 
8,976 

79,972 
156,820 

583,929 
152,508 
39,871 
94,554 
87,435 

547,429 555,1031,102,532 958,297 

65,933 20,254 

958,254 1,684,909 2,643,163 2,743,350 

Grant 
Support funding Governance Total 

costs of activities 2017 

580,280 
464,224 
58,028 

427,170 
88,350 

Of the £2,643,163 expenditure £460,783 related to restricted funds and was all categorised as other 
expenditure. 

Direct 
costs 

Research 
Support 
Prevention 

376,135 
361,971 
221,072 

959,178 1,102,532 515,520 

34,702 1,418,287 
27,761 942,306 

3,470 282,570 

Total 
2016 

1,234,892 
524,124 
964,080 

65,933 2,643,163 2,723,096 
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17 Oonations and Leg;:lcies - Charity only 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

Funds Funds Funds Funds 
2017 2017 2017 2016 
£ £ £ £ 

Donations and gifts from individuals 
Donations 3,342 3,342 5,040 
Employee Fundraising 23,351 23,351 10,221 
Individual Giving 266,413 266,413 281,433 
Payroll Giving 111,153 111,153 113,273 

404,259 404,259 409,967 

Legacies receivable 

Legacies receivable 442,395 442,395 526,459 

442,395 442,395 526,459 

Revenue grants and donations from non-public bodies 

Corporate Grants 68,084 253 68,337 75,198 
Corporate Events 1,657 1,657 7,272 
Trusts 21,968 106,547 128,515 101,590 

91,709 106,800 198,509 184,060 

Sponsorship 

Pause for Hope 8,361 8,361 1,032 
Sponsorships (4,572) 260,826 256,254 309,312 

(4,572) 269,187 264,615 310,344 

In Memoriam 

In Memoriam 140,837 3,400 144,237 184,397 

140,837 3,400 144,237 184,397 

Gift Aid on Donations 

Gift Aid on Donations 385,355 385,355 283,809 

305,355 305,355 283,809 

Total Donations and Legacies - Charity 1,459,983 379,387 1,839,370 1,899,036 
---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 

Of the 2016 income, £1,534,754 was unrestricted and £364,282 was restricted. 
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18 Income from charitable activities - Charity only 

Charitable income from funders 

Prospect monies 

Reimbursement 
Minor reimbursed expenses and honoraria 

Total income from charitable activities 

Unrestricted 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

Restricted 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

8,322 

8,322 

8,322 

Total income from charitable activities all related to prevention. 

Of the 2016 income, £1,324 was unrestricted and £44,928 was restricted. 

19 Income from other, non-charitable, trading activities - Charity only 

Trading activities to raise funds for the charity 
Income from fundraising events 
Sponsorships and social lotteries which cannot 
be considered pure donations 

Unrestricted 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

Restricted 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

Total 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

8,322 

8,322 

8,322 

Total 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

442 
387,004 

59,357 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

40,000 

40,000 

6,252 

6,252 

46,252 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

125 
314,795 

91,291 

446,803 406,211 

Total income from other non-charitable, trading activity split by activity all related to fundraising 
activities. 

All of the 2016 income was unrestricted. 

442 
387,004 

59,357 

446,803 
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20 Investment income - Charity Only 

Property Rental Income 
Dividend Income 
Bank Interest Receivable 
Gift Aid 

All of 2016 income was unrestricted. 

Unrestricted Restricted 
Funds Funds 
2017 2017 
£ £ 

57,835 
40,433 

1,910 

Total 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

57,835 
40,433 

1,910 

100,178 

21 Expenditure on raising funds and costs of investment management - Charity only 

Cost of fundraising activities 
Marketing & advertising of fundraising 
Costs of seeking donations, grants and legacies 
Cost of operating social lotteries 
Costs of staging fund raising events 
Gross wages and salaries - fundraising activities 
Temporary Staff - fundraising activities 
Other Direct Costs - Fundraising Activities 
Staff Training & Welfare - Fundraising Activities 
Travel and Subsistence - Fundraising Activities 

All of the 2016 expenditure was unrestricted. 

100,178 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

68,843 
37,611 
2,971 

------ ---- ---- ---- ----- ---- ---- ---- 
109,425 

Unrestricted Restricted 
Funds Funds 
2017 2017 
£ £ 

24,241 
15,955 

369 
18,695 
83,684 

408,840 
1,716 

141,967 
9,719 

14,647 

719,833 

Total 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

24,241 
15,955 

369 
18,695 
83,684 

408,840 
1,716 

141,967 
9,719 

14,647 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

19,778 
35,648 

371 
20,643 
64,470 

444,225 
8,673 

151,979 
9,692 

12,889 

719,833 768,368 
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22 Expenditure on charitable activities - Charity 

Note 

Staff 
costs 
2017 
£ 

Other 
2017 
£ 

Direct spending 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 282,663 

155,462 
299,981 

282,663 455,443 738,106 602,361 

Grant funding 
Individual grants 
Organisation grants 
Staff costs 

24 
88,350 

396,372 
30,798 

30,798 484,722 515,520 652,288 

Support costs (all unrestricted) 
Staff costs 
Premises costs 
Legal and professional costs 
Depreciation/interest 
Other - admin 

547,429 
274,600 

8,806 
38,925 

190,239 

547,429 512,570 1,059,999 1,343,712 

Governance costs 53,768 

860,890 1,506,503 2,367,393 2,607,323 

Total 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

155,462 
582,644 

88,350 
396,372 
30,798 

547,429 
274,600 

8,806 
38,925 

190,239 

53,768 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

116,208 
486,153 

73,725 
547,539 
31,024 

583,977 
131,785 
39,023 
40,157 

548,770 

8,962 

----- ---- ---- ---- ----- ---- ---- --- 

Of the £2,367,393 expenditure £450,899 (2016: £315,146) related to restricted funds and was 
categorised as other expenditure. 

23 Summary of charitable costs by activity - Charity only 

Direct 
costs 

Grant 
Support funding Governance Total 

costs of activities 2017 
Total 
2016 

Research 
Support 
Prevention 

376,135 
361,971 

557,894 
446,315 
55,789 

427,170 
88,350 

28,299 1,389,498 1,397,173 
22,639 919,276 564,693 
2,830 58,619 636,496 

515,520 53,768 2,367,393 2,598,362 738,106 1,059,999 
---- ----- ---- ------ ---- ----- ---- ------ ---- ---- ---- ---- 
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24 Breakdown of Grants to organisations 

Un restricted Restricted 
Funds Funds 
2017 2017 
£ £ 

Total 
Funds 
2017 
£ 

Total 
Funds 
2016 
£ 

University of Liverpool 
University College London 
University of Nottingham 
Kings College London 
University of Nottingham 
University of Sterling 
St James Hospital 

133,985 
67,263 

133,985 
67,263 

476,619 

85,124 
110,000 

85,124 
110,000 20,954 

24,980 
24,986 

396,372 396,372 547,539 

In 2016 £348,601 was unrestricted and £198,938 was restricted. 

25 Investment gains 
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

Funds Funds Funds Funds 
Group 2017 2017 2017 2016 

£ £ £ £ 

Listed investments - Realised gains/(Iosses) 17,521 17,521 (12,593) 

Listed investments - Unrealised gains 65,542 65,542 132,104 

Total realised and unrealised gains 83,063 83,063 119,511 
--- ---- ---- ----- ----- ---- ---- ---- 

All the gains on investments in 2016 was unrestricted. 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
Funds Funds Funds Funds 

Charity Only 2017 2017 2017 2016 
£ £ £ £ 

Listed investments - Realised gains/(Iosses) 17,521 17,521 (12,593) 

Listed investments - Unrealised gains 71,652 71,652 132,104 

Total realised and unrealised gains 89,173 89,173 119,511 

All the gains on investments in 2016 was unrestricted. 
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26 Tangible fixed assets Research 
Leasehold Fixtures office and 

Group land and and computer Group 
buildings fittings equipment total 

£ £ £ £ 
Cost 
At 1 January 2017 825,570 252,642 560,181 1,638,393 
Additions 3,700 12,971 17,085 33,756 

At 31 December 2017 829,270 265,613 577,266 1,672,149 

Depreciation 
At 1 January 2017 773,076 161,919 465,964 1,400,959 
Charge for the year 25,714 24,528 31,957 82,199 

At 31 December 2017 798,790 186,447 497,921 1,483,158 

Net book value 
At 31 December 2017 30,480 79,166 79,345 188,991 

--- --- 
At 31 December 2016 52,494 90,723 94,217 237,434 

Research 
Leasehold Fixtures office and 

Charity Only land and and computer 
buildings fittings equipment Total 

£ £ £ £ 
Cost 
At 1 January 2017 143,975 16,545 296,692 457,212 
Additions 

At 31 December 2017 143,975 16,545 296,692 457,212 

Depreciation 
At 1 January 2017 117,346 16,545 240,324 374,215 
Charge for the year 14,577 22,699 37,276 

At 31 December 2017 131,923 16,545 263,023 411,491 

Net book value 
At 31 December 2017 12,052 33,669 45,721 

At 31 December 2016 26,629 56,368 82,997 
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27 Investments held as fixed assets by the Parent Company 

Investments in Listed 
undertakings investments Total 

£ £ £ 
Carrying values of investments 
At 1 January 2017 129,597 1,259,051 1,388,648 
Additions 147,743 147,743 
Cash movement 49,345 49,345 
Revaluation at 31 December 2017 71,652 71,652 
Disposals (147,077) (147,077) 

At 31 December 2017 129,597 1,380,714 1,510,311 
----- 

The investment in the subsidiary companies Roy Castle Clean Air Limited £nil (2016: £2) and Cut Films 
Limited £nil (2016: £1) were impaired in the prior year. 

Analysis between historical cost and revaluation based on market value 

Investments as above historical cost 129,597 1,060,959 1,190,556 

Analysis of types of investments: 
2017 2016 

Cash 
Listed investments 

211,651 
1,169,063 

82,411 
1,176,640 

1,380,714 1,259,051 

Analysis of investments in subsidiary undertakings by the Parent Company, The Roy Castle Lung 
Cancer Foundation 

Included at 
Historical 
cost, less 
write down 

£ 

Loans to group undertakings 
Equity investment in group undertakings 

129,592 
5 

129,597 

Analysis of equity investments: 
Investments cost 5 

5 

The company holds 20% or more of the share capital of the following companies: 

Capital & 
Company Shares held Profit/(Ioss) Reserves 

Class % 

The Cut Films Projects Limited Ltd by guarantee (35,517) (74,168) 
Cut Films Limited Ordinary 100 (106,534) (249,656) 
Roy Castle Patient Support Limited Ordinary 100 (30) 10,636 
Roy Castle Retail Limited Ordinary 100 218,795 195,126 
Roy Castle Trading Limited Ordinary 100 119,763 141,479 
Roy Castle Clean Air Limited Ordinary 100 (14,353) (196,836) 
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28 Subsidiary companies 

The Charity has four wholly owned subsidiaries: 
Three trading subsidiaries 
Roy Castle Retail Ltd - Company number: 03604677 
Roy Castle Trading Ltd - Company number: 03909935 
Roy Castle Clean Air Ltd - Company number: 05748774 
One subsidiary charity 
Roy Castle Patient Support Ltd - Company number: 06149309 - Charity number: 1125191 (formerly 
known as Roy Castle Patient Care Ltd). 

Principle Activities 
Retail Charity Shops 
Charity and Charitable Events 
Provision of stop smoking services 

The charity has one subsidiary charity limited by guarantee which it controls via appointed trustees 
The Cut Films Project Ltd which itself has a separate trading subsidiary Cut Films Ltd which provides youth 
smoking awareness programmes. An independent exam has been carried out on Cut Films Projects Ltd. 

Where liability is limited by shareholding the amount of the holding company's investment in each 
subsidiary is £2, which represents 100% of the issued ordinary share capital of each subsidiary. In all 
cases the subsidiary is controlled by the holding company by virtue of the power to appoint directors to the 
board of the subsidiary. 

All companies are incorporated in England and Wales and are exempt from audit. 

The subsidiary's activities relate to those of the holding company in that the subsidiary is a trading 
enterprise engaging in trades similar to the charitable activities of the holding company, and donates its 
entire taxable trading profit to the holding company by way of gift aid. 

A summary of the financial statements of the subsidiaries is:- 

Net profit for the year before tax 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

658,416 982,927 
(1,119,862) (1,008,589) 

(461,446) (25,662) 
----- ---- ----- ----- 

2,354,864 2,482,447 
(2,161,905) (2,431,740) 

192,959 50,707 

(835) (4,194) 
(364,082) (263,826) 

(171,958) (217,313) 
----- ---- ----- 

Note 2017 2016 
£ £ 

36 43,005 36,076 
----- ----- 

Assets and Funds 
Aggregate amount of assets 
Aggregate amounts of liabilities 

Aggregate amount of funds 

Profit and Loss 
Turnover net of VAT 
Expenses net of VAT 

. Interest Paid 
Gift Aid Payments made to holding company 

Net profitl(loss) for the year after tax and gift aid 

Funds retained within charitable subsidiaries 

The income and expenditure of the Cut Films project are included in the consolidated accounts from the 
date of the acquisition, the income and expenditure of it are similarly included in the consolidated accounts. 
The charity took control of the Cut Films Project on the 1 st July 2015. 

Amounts owing to and from the subsidiary are shown in the notes relating to creditors and debtors. 
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29 Stock 

Stocks 

Group 
2017 2016 
£ £ 

89,977 

89,977 

78,785 

78,785 

Charity Only 
2017 2016 
£ £ 

9,364 6,670 

9,364 6,670 

Analysis of the value of stock by activity 

Costs of stock included in the statement of financial activities amounted to £128,258 (2016: £166,030). 

Activity 
Fundraising activities 
Stocks for Sales of donated and related Goods 

30 Debtors 

Trade debtors 
Amounts owed by group undertakings and 
undertakings in which the company has a 
participati ng interest 
Prepayments and accrued income 
Other debtors 

Group 
2017 2016 
£ £ 

9,364 
80,613 

89,977 

6,670 
72,115 

78,785 

Group 
2017 2016 
£ £ 

99,936 

408,531 
60,292 

568,759 

81,725 

373,195 
65,254 

520,174 

Charity Only 
2017 2016 
£ £ 

9,364 6,670 

9,364 6,670 

Charity Only 
2017 2016 
£ £ 

76,165 43,079 

268,403 
287,511 
22,041 

426,805 
236,453 
41,018 

654,120 747,355 

The intercompany balances of £40,302 (2016: £474,841) have been impaired in Charity only. 
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31 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year Group Charity Only 
2017 2016 2017 2016 
£ £ £ £ 

Trade creditors 152,957 193,148 79,848 103,350 
Accruals 320,320 204,217 213,992 103,131 
Amounts owed to group undertakings and 
undertakings in which the company has a 
participating interest 40,117 67,569 
PAYE, NIC VAT and other taxes 107,856 24,475 107,856 23,289 
Other creditors 710,776 786,699 710,775 789,142 

1,291,909 1,208,539 1,152,588 1,086,481 

The is a debenture in place dated 11 April 2001 in Roy Castle Retail Limited over leasehold property of 
the company by Barclays Bank pic. 

There is a cross guarantee between Roy Castle Retail Limited and Roy Castle Lung Foundation. 

32 Charitable commitments not recognised as provisions or commitments in the accounts 

The charity operates an open grants process for Research Grants, some grant applications extend beyond 
one year, however the charity has an annual review policy for grants that extend beyond one year, with 
the ability to terminate the grant should it not meet it's objectives. Grant costs are accrued into the accounts 
upto the review date of each grant as this forms the contractual obligation. 

There is therefore £645,000 (2016: £800,000) of awards that are contingent on the grants meeting their 
criteria that would then fall across the next two subsequent years accounts. 

At the year end the group had total outstanding commitments under 
non-cancellable operating leases as set out below: 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

651,087 587,087 
1,104,813 1,032,019 

78,000 257,800 

1,833,900 1,876,906 

Operating leases which expire: 
within one year 
within two to five years 
in over five years 

33 Related party transactions 

The senior management team as identified in the Trustees Annual Report received a total of £288,500 in 
salaries (2016: £373,000). 

Balances held with subsidiary companies of Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation in the year were as 
follows: 

2017 
£ 

2016 
£ 

Included in debtors: 
Included in creditors: 
Bad debt write off 
Interest charged on balances: 

268,403 
(40,117) 
38,659 

835 

426,805 
(67,569) 
474,844 

911 
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34 Related party transactions with Trustees 

David Maples who is a member of the Board of Trustees is also a partner in Brabners, one of the firms of 
solicitors the Foundation uses. Brabners is primarily used for employment law issues an area David has 
no involvement in, either for Brabners or the Foundation. In the year transactions took place of £370 
(2016: £4,824) with Branbers. No amount was due at year end. 

35 Particulars of how particular funds are represented by assets and liabilities 

Group 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

At 31 December 2017 funds funds funds 
£ £ £ 

Tangible Fixed Assets 188,991 188,991 
Investments at valuation:- 1,380,714 1,380,714 
Current Assets 848,918 411,321 1,260,239 
Current Liabilities (1,291,908) (1,291,908) 
Long Term Liabilities 

1,126,715 411,321 1,538,036 

Charity Unrestricted Restricted Total 
At 31 December 2017 funds funds funds 

£ £ £ 

Tangible Fixed Assets 45,721 45,721 
Investments at valuation:- 
Fixed asset investments 1,510,314 1,510,314 
Current Assets 711,292 368,317 1,079,609 
Current Liabilities (1,152,588) (1,152,588) 
Long Term Liabilities 

1,114,739 368,317 1,483,056 
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36 Change in total funds over the year as shown in Note 36, analysed by individual funds 

Group Funds Funds 
brought carried 
forward Income Expenditure forward 
2017 2017 
£ £ £ £ 

Unrestricted and designated tunas:- 
Charity Unrestricted Funds 
Unrestricted revenue funds 1,765,721 4,191,990 (4,743,471) 1,214,240 
Trading Subsidiary Funds 
non-charitable trading funds (87,524) (87,524) 

Total unrestricted and designated funds 1,678,197 4,191,990 (4,743,471) 1,126,716 

Charity Restricted Funds 
Sundry ReF Restricted Reserves 41,880 160,065 (123,637) 78,308 
Prospect Law 31,825 31,825 
GLee 366,668 219,322 (327,262) 258,728 
Boehringer Ingleheim Awareness Project (546) (546) 
Subidiary 
Restricted Funds 
Re Patient Support Restricted Reserves 36,076 16,813 (9,884) 43,005 

Total restricted funds 475,903 396,200 (460,783) 411,320 

Total Group Funds 2,154,100 4,588,190 (5,204,254) 1,538,036 

Included in the expenditure above are gains on investments of £83,063 in unrestricted funds. 
Restricted Funds 
Boehringer Ingleheim Awareness Project 
Re Patient Support Restricted Reserves 
Sundry ReF Restricted Reserves 
GLee 

Charity only 

Unrestricted and designated funds:- 

Unrestricted revenue funds 

Total unrestricted and designated funds 

ReF Restricted funds: 
Research - GLee 
LeiSS Facilitator 
Prospect Law 
Research - others 

Total restricted funds 

Total Charity Funds 

To fund lung cancer awareness for individuals 
To fund lung cancer patient support for individuals 
To fund lung cancer research for individuals 
To fund lung cancer research for individuals 

Funds Funds 
brought carried 
forward Income Expenditure forward 
2017 2017 
£ £ £ £ 

1,529,008 2,222,058 (2,636,327) 1,114,739 

1,529,008 2,222,058 (2,636,327) 1,114,739 
---- 

366,668 219,322 (295,437) 290,553 
678 (678) 

31,825 (31,825) 
40,658 160,065 (122,959) 77,764 

439,829 379,387 (450,899) 368,317 

1,968,837 2,601,445 (3,087,226) 1,483,056 

Included in the expenditure above are gains on investments of £89,173 in unrestricted funds. 
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37 Change in total funds over the year 
Gains & Movement 

Income Expenditure Losses in funds 
Group 2017 2017 2017 2017 

£ £ £ £ 
Unrestricted and designated funds:- 
Unrestricted revenue funds 4,108,927 (4,743,471) 83,063 (551,481) 

Restricted funds:- 
Restricted Reserves 396,200 (460,783) (64,583) 

4,505,127 (5,204,254) 83,063 (616,604) 

38 The purposes for which the funds as detailed in note 37 are held by the charity are:- 

Unrestricted and designated funds:- 

Unrestricted revenue funds These funds are held for the meeting the general objectives of 
the charity, and to provide reserves for future activities, and 
subject to charity legislation, are free from all restrictions on 
their use. 

Restricted funds:- 

Sundry RCF Restricted Reserves These funds are held for meeting specific objectives of the 
charity as specified by the donor, and to provide reserves for 
future suitable activities subject to charity legislation and 
subject to the restrictions placed on them by individual donors 

GLCC These funds are held for meeting specific objectives of the 
charity as specified by the donor, and to provide reserves for 
future suitable activities subject to charity legislation and 
subject to the restrictions placed on them by individual donors 

Group Charity 
39 Financial instruments 2017 2016 2017 2016 

£ £ £ £ 
Carrying amount of financial assets 

" Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 290,059 244,886 508,909 608,809 
Financial instruments measured at fair value 1,169,066 1,259,051 1,298,663 1,388,648 

Carrying amount of financial liabilities 
Measured at amortised cost 1,218,773 1,184,064 1,017,122 1,063,192 

40 Ultimato controlling party 

The Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation is the ultimate controlling party and is under the control of its 
legal members. 
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